
*Executive Session: Subjects that may be considered in executive session are: 1)  Matters, immediate knowledge of which would clearly have 
an adverse effect upon the finances of the public entity; 2)  Subjects that tend to prejudice the reputation and character of any person, 
provided that the person may request a public discussion; 3)  Matters which by law, municipal charter, or ordinance are required to be 
confidential; 4)  Matters involving consideration of governmental records that by law are not subject to public disclosure; 5)  Direction to an 
attorney or labor negotiator regarding the handling of specific legal matters or labor negotiations. 

                                           AGENDA 
               CCMC AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
                 ZOOM MEETING OR TELECONFERENCE 

              December 16, 2021 at 6:00PM  
                    AT CCMC, WE BELIEVE THAT HEALTHY PEOPLE CREATE A HEALTHY COMMUNITY. 

OPENING: Call to Order 
Roll Call – Linnea Ronnegard, Greg Meyer, Kelsey Hayden, Liz Senear, and  
Janice Warga. 
Establishment of a Quorum 
A. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS  

(Speaker must give name and agenda item)   
 1.  Audience Comments  

2.  Guest Speaker  
B. BOARD DEVELOPMENT      Pg  1-11 

1. Understanding and Addressing Social Determinants of Health  
C. CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
E. APPROVAL OF MINUTES        

1. November 23, 2021 Meeting Minutes    Pgs  12-13     
F. REPORTS OF OFFICERS OR ADVISORS - None  

1. Board Chair Report 
2. CEO Report              
3. CFO Report             

G. DISCUSSION ITEMS          
H. ACTION ITEMS  

1. Approval of 2022 Budget       Pgs 14-18 
I.  AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION (limited to 3 minutes per speaker) Members of the public are given the opportunity to 

comment on matters which are within the subject matter jurisdiction of the Board and are appropriate for discussion in an open session. 
J. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS  
K. EXECUTIVE SESSION  
L. ADJOURNMENT   
 
 
Due to COVID-19, we ask that you not come to CCMC to attend Board meetings in person.  
 
 
This Board of Directors meeting will be held via ZOOM: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4675701050?pwd=TXEvSFVHOHhIL1JvOGNua1RUUjdQUT09 
Meeting ID: 467 570 1050; Passcode: 379187 

To call in: 1-253-215-8782  
Meeting ID: 467 570 1050; Passcode: 379187 

For a full packet, go to www.cityofcordova.net/government/boards-commissions/health-services-board 

Board of Directors 
Linnea Ronnegard    exp. 3/24 
Greg Meyer             exp. 3/22 
Liz Senear               exp. 3/24 
Kelsey Hayden         exp. 3/23 
Janice Warga           exp. 3/22 
 
CEO  
Hannah Sanders, M.D. 

  

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/4675701050?pwd=TXEvSFVHOHhIL1JvOGNua1RUUjdQUT09


Understanding and Addressing Social Determinants of Health: 

Opportunities to Improve Health Outcomes 

A Guide for Rural Health Care Leaders 

INTRODUCTION  

This guide provides rural health care leaders and teams with foundational knowledge, strategies, and 
resources to understand the impact of social determinants of health (SDOH) on patients and 
communities. It organizes key information and resources to help the busy manager support and lead 
education and discussion with front-line staff. This guide focuses on (1) understanding the need and 
opportunity around addressing SDOH, (2) using local data to support decision making, and (3) involving 
team members to plan and implement action steps. It is intended for leaders in a variety of clinical and 
public or community health settings, and includes the following sections: 

1. Build Awareness: Understand SDOH
2. Recognize Needs: Identify Local SDOH
3. Identify Opportunities for Action
4. Plan Next Steps
5. Additional Resources

How to use this guide 
Leaders can introduce different sections or topics at team meetings and facilitate discussions among 
team members. Depending on team member needs, from needing foundational information and data to 
being ready to begin or enhance efforts to address SDOH, information in the guide can be reviewed in 
bite-size 15–30-minute team discussions. Leaders might ask team members with interest in the 
particular topics to facilitate discussion of relevant sections and plan next steps.  

Background 
Multiple factors influence health outcomes, including 
underlying genetics, health behaviors, clinical care, social and 
economic factors, and physical environment. Understanding 
key factors that influence health is important for people who 
work in rural communities because many of these factors can 
contribute to the less-than-optimal health that is often 
prevalent in rural Americans. 

Health disparities among rural residents are well 
documented, and the COVID-19 pandemic has exacerbated 
these already existing disparities, especially for people of  

Social determinants of health (SDOH) are 
conditions in the environments in which 
people are born, live, learn, work, play, 
worship, and age that affect a wide range 
of health, functioning, and quality-of-life 
outcomes and risks (Healthy People). 
Examples of SDOH include employment, 
food access, housing, transportation, 
education, and access to affordable quality 
health services. SDOH can influence health 
in positive and negative ways. 

1

https://www.healthypeople.gov/2020/topics-objectives/topic/social-determinants-of-health


color.1,2,3 These disparities have multiple causes, including SDOH. A variety of factors are linked to poorer 
health in rural communities:4 

• Health Behaviors: Rural residents often have limited access to healthy foods and fewer
opportunities to be physically active compared to their urban counterparts, which can lead to
conditions such as obesity and high blood pressure. Rural residents also have higher rates of
smoking, which increases the risk of several chronic diseases.

• Health Care Access: Rural counties have fewer health care workers, specialists (such as cancer
doctors), critical care units, emergency facilities, and transportation options. Residents are also
more likely to be uninsured and to live farther away from health services.

• Healthy Food Access: National and local studies suggest that residents of low-income, minority,
and rural neighborhoods often have less access to supermarkets and healthy foods.

• Demographic Characteristics: Residents of rural areas tend to be older, with lower incomes and
less education than their urban counterparts.

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) notes that addressing SDOH is a primary approach 
to achieving health equity. Health equity occurs when everyone has the opportunity to attain their full 
health potential, and no one is disadvantaged from achieving their potential because of social position 
or other socially determined circumstances. 

Rural health care teams can address SDOH and improve the health of patients and community 
members. As the shift in health care to value-based care and payment moves into its second decade, 
rural health care organizations are encouraged to embrace their role as community leaders and partners 
to better coordinate efforts and develop local strategies to address SDOH and improve health. Value-
based care provides opportunities to shift resources to address SDOH challenges that obstruct optimal 
health and misuse health care resources. Addressing SDOH challenges can translate into better health 
sustainability and improved community health.  

BUILD AWARENESS: UNDERSTAND SDOH 

The following resources can help deepen understanding of SDOH impacts on patient and community 
health. Managers or team leaders can use the information to help staff gain new knowledge and insight, 
develop greater sensitivity to SDOH, and be inspired to address SDOH.  

Each of the resources listed in this section is followed by a set of discussion questions. Staff can review 
the resource(s) in advance or provide a brief overview during team meetings followed by discussion 
about how the concepts apply locally.  

A. Healthy People SDOH Overview
Review the Healthy People website for basic information on SDOH. This website:

• Defines SDOH as “Conditions in the environments in which people are born, live, learn,
work, play, worship, and age that affect a wide range of health, functioning, and quality-of-
life outcomes and risks.”

• Outlines five SDOH domains and associated key issues:

2

https://www.healthypeople.gov/2020/topics-objectives/topic/social-determinants-of-health


SDOH  Underlying factors of the SDOH  

Economic Stability 
 

Employment 
Food Insecurity 
Housing Instability, Homelessness 
Poverty 
Reliable Transportation 

Education Access and 
Quality 
 

Early Childhood Education and Development 
Enrollment in Higher Education 
High School Graduation 
Language and Literacy 

Social and Community 
Context 
 

Civic Participation 
Discrimination 
Incarceration 
Social Cohesion 

Health Care Access and 
Quality 
 

Access to Health Care 
Access to Primary Care 
Health Literacy 

Neighborhood and Built 
Environment 
 

Access to Foods that Support Healthy Eating Patterns 
Crime and Violence 
Environmental Conditions 
Quality of Housing 
Transportation Options 

 
Suggested questions for team discussion 

• What SDOH affect people in our community (e.g., access to healthy food, unsafe housing, 
unreliable transportation)? 

• How do these SDOH affect the health of people in our community?  

• How might addressing SDOH improve health locally?  

• What processes does our organization have in place to help individuals address SDOH 
needs? 

 
B. County Health Rankings & Roadmaps 

The County Health Rankings & Roadmaps website explores and quantifies factors that influence how 
long and how well we live. Explore this model to better understand the social factors that influence 
health.  
 
The County Health Rankings model (below) shows how these factors work together and illustrates 
where we can take action to improve health.  
 
Suggested questions for team discussion 

• What surprised you about factors that influence how long and how well we live?  

• How do factors identified affect the health of people in our community? 

• Social and economic factors and the physical environment often impact and influence health 
behaviors. How do you see those connections at play in our community?  

• What roles can health care organizations play in addressing SDOH? 
 

 

3

https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/explore-health-rankings/measures-data-sources/county-health-rankings-model


County Health Rankings Model 

 
 
C. Healthy People 2020 Video: Karla (age 6) and James (age 76) 

This video (4.53 minutes) discusses determinants of health – what makes some people healthy and 
others unhealthy. It provides examples of two individuals and how SDOH interventions can improve 
health outcomes. 
 
Suggested questions for team discussion 

• What factors make some people healthy and others unhealthy? 

• What can we do to help everyone have a chance to live a long healthy life? 

• What does health equity mean?  

• How can health care organizations partner with other community leaders on interventions 
to support health equity?  

 
D. Social Determinants of Health Video: Jeff and Chad 

This video (2.53 minutes) shows two men and describes differences in their social and economic 
status. 
 
Suggested questions for team discussion 

• If you cared for these two men in the emergency department or clinic, how might you treat 
them differently? 

• How does income, housing, and diet directly affect health?  

4

https://www.youtube.com/watch?app=desktop&v=5Yb3B75eqbo
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=_11xLlwKgWc


• If Chad is unhealthy due to issues beyond his control, how does that fact affect the health 
care system, the community, the nation? 

• What health care system or community resources are available to Chad, or should be 
developed, that might make a meaningful difference in his health and his life? 

 
E. Need for Addressing SDOH in Rural Communities (Rural Health Information Hub – RHIhub)  

The RHIhub website discusses the need for addressing SDOH in rural communities, noting that 
compared to their nonrural counterparts, people living in rural areas have higher rates of 
unemployment, lower educational attainment, and less access to health care and social services. 
These factors directly affect an individual's health and well-being.  

 
You can continue to learn about SDOH and how they affect the health of rural residents by reading 
the Frequently Asked Questions on the RHIhub website.  

 

RECOGNIZE NEEDS: IDENTIFY LOCAL SDOH 

Explore one or more of the three websites below to review data for your local area and compare 
findings to other counties, the state, or the nation. Using data can support your health improvement 
work, help you to identify and understand disparities in your community, and reinforce the need to 
address SDOH. Data can help you to tell a story about your community’s health and how SDOH are 
impacting health. Basic instructions to use and explore the sites are provided below, along with 
suggested questions for team discussion. 

 
A. Rural Data Explorer (RHIhub) 

The Rural Data Explorer website provides a wide range of data on health disparities, SDOH, health 
care access, health care workforce, demographics, and more. Explore how metropolitan and 
nonmetro counties compare, nationwide and by state. 
 
Look at SDOH indicators, health disparities, and other health-related measures. Select your state 
and county and compare it to other counties that are more urban or affluent. You will note 
disparities between metro and nonmetro counties. For example, poverty and diagnosed diabetes 
prevalence in nonmetro areas are often higher than in metro areas. Keep in mind that county level 
sample sizes may be small, and if portions of the county are more metropolitan, those data may 
outweigh more rural areas of the county, skewing county-level data.  
 
Suggested questions for team discussion 

• How do our indicator rates differ from other more urban or affluent counties? Why might 
there be differences. What are contributing factors? 

• What is our rate of prevalence of diabetes? Why is there a correlation between diabetes 
prevalence, poverty, and rural residence? What factors are at play? 

• How does our county compare in the “leisure time physical inactivity” indicator (important 
because of the correlation between lack of exercise and diabetes, the positive effects of 
exercise for people with diabetes, and the role of exercise in heart disease prevention)? 
Why is there a correlation between diabetes prevalence, poverty, and rural residence? What 
factors are at play? 

• How does our county compare in the “overdose deaths per 100,000” indicator? How are 
SDOH impacting our community members’ health and health outcomes in this indicator? 

5

https://www.ruralhealthinfo.org/toolkits/sdoh/1/need-in-rural
https://www.ruralhealthinfo.org/topics/social-determinants-of-health#faqs
https://www.ruralhealthinfo.org/data-explorer


Why is it important to pursue both health care system solutions as well as community-based 
solutions to address the opioid crisis?  

• Did any findings surprise you? 
 
B. How Healthy is Your Community? (County Health Rankings & Roadmaps) 

The County Health Rankings & Roadmaps website provides information on how healthy your county 
is and factors that drive health. 
 
Scroll down to the “How Healthy is Your Community” section, enter your state, county, or ZIP code 
to review health outcome and health factor data and rankings. Select “areas to explore” and certain 
findings will be highlighted. Make note of areas to explore in your community or county. 
 
Suggested questions for team discussion 

• Which of these “areas to explore” identified for our community play a significant role in 
influencing health in our community or county? 

• How do poverty, rural setting, or other social conditions contribute to these factors? 
 
C. Interactive Atlas of Heart Disease and Stroke (CDC) 

According to the CDC, heart disease is the leading cause of death in the United States.5 However, 
CDC studies note the significant gap in health between rural and urban Americans. For example, 
rural Americans are more likely than their urban counterparts to die from heart disease and other 
leading causes of death (cancer, unintentional injury, chronic lower respiratory disease, and stroke).6 
The 2015 American Heart Association scientific statement on the Social Determinants of Risk and 
Outcomes for Cardiovascular Disease emphasizes the importance of addressing social determinants 
to achieve the 2020 goals of promoting cardiovascular health for all.7  
 
The CDC provides detailed county-level maps that allow you to review cardiovascular disease (CVD) 
death rates and look at factors including race, education level, and urban/rural status. Use these 
maps to review data for your county and state. 
 

For example, from the interactive atlas, select the US map state level, then select your state. In 
the Select Data and Filters Area, click on the + sign next to Heart Disease and Stroke Data, then 
click on the + sign next to All Heart Disease. Click on Deaths, then click on “apply filters.” 
 
You will see a map of your state, with each county colored to show heart disease deaths per 
100,000. Click on your county and select the View County Report option to see details about the 
race and ethnicity breakdown of heart disease deaths in your county. 

 
Suggested questions for team discussion 

• Are heart disease death rates in our county different from those in other counties in our 
state? 

• If they are different, why might this be? 

• Modifiable factors, including blood pressure, smoking status, physical activity, diet, weight, 
cholesterol, and blood glucose, contribute to heart disease.8, 9  
Is there evidence that one or more of these factors might impact people in our county? You 
can find county-level data regarding these factors in the RHIhub Rural Data Explorer and 
selecting health disparity indicators.  

6

https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/
https://www.cdc.gov/dhdsp/maps/atlas/index.htm
https://www.cdc.gov/dhdsp/maps/atlas/index.htm
https://www.cdc.gov/dhdsp/maps/atlas/index.htm
https://www.ruralhealthinfo.org/data-explorer


IDENTIFY OPPORTUNITIES FOR ACTION 

Involve team members in discussions on the following topics. These questions will guide you through 
the first steps in a basic quality improvement process (using data to understand the problem or 
opportunity more deeply, learning about evidence-based or best practice, connecting with partners, and 
anticipating barriers). Suggested discussion questions are provided, along with links to resources and 
additional information.  

 
A. Review the Data 

In the section above, you reviewed and discussed data on health disparities, demographics, health 
care access, SDOH, and more. Identify who has done a community needs assessment for your 
community and review the results, or conduct a community needs assessment if you do not have 
one. Note that nonprofit hospitals are required to do a community needs assessment every three 
years. More on conducting a community health needs assessment is available here. 

 
Suggested questions for team discussion 

• What are key SDOH impacting our patients and community members?  

• How are these SDOH impacting health and health outcomes? 

• What does our community needs assessment tell us about our SDOH needs? 
 
B. Identify and Connect to Local Activities Already in Place 

Suggested questions for team discussion 

• What strategies have already been implemented, and what has worked well in addressing SDOH 
in our health care system and in our community (for example, initiatives to increase access to 
fruits and vegetables or to increase physical activity)? 

• What additional areas might be priorities to address? 

• Are there opportunities to better connect patients and families to current initiatives or to 
provide support and resources that could strengthen local resources? 

 
C. Learn from Others  

Review stories about other communities and providers that are addressing SDOH:  

• Community stories. Filter stories by state, partners, health factors, and more. 

• Examples addressing SDOH. Review examples of rural organizations that are addressing SDOH in 
their communities. 

• Rural health models and innovations. Select browse by topic. 

• Review two examples of rural counties working to address issues associated with diabetes, 
particularly food and exercise.  
o Lakewood Engage, Lakewood Health System in Minnesota, includes food access initiatives 

that increase access to safe, nutritious, and affordable food for positive health impact.  
o “Moving Starke County across America” Campaign, Starke County, Indiana, focused on 

factors that contribute to premature death: obesity, physical activity, etc. The goal of the 
campaign was for residents to be more active.  

 
Suggested questions for team discussion 

• What ideas are inspiring? What initiatives might we consider in our community? 

 
 
 

7

https://www.ruralhealthinfo.org/toolkits/rural-toolkit/1/needs-assessment
https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/learn-from-others/stories
https://www.ruralhealthinfo.org/toolkits/sdoh/3/program-clearinghouse
https://www.ruralhealthinfo.org/project-examples
https://www.ruralhealthinfo.org/project-examples/1094
https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/learn-from-others/stories/how-data-can-inspire-a-community-starke-county-in


D. Identify and Connect with Key Partners 
Suggested questions for team discussion 

• What community partners should we work with to leverage resources to address SDOH?  
o Potential partners are listed here, and another resource to help you think about the people 

in your community who make positive changes happen, and tips for reaching out to new 
partners is here. 

o “A Guide for Rural Health Care Collaboration and Coordination” discusses how rural 
providers can work together to identify the health needs in their communities, create 
partnerships to address those needs, and develop a “community-minded” approach to 
health care. It includes key lessons learned from rural health leaders on implementing 
collaboration and coordination strategies. 

 
E. Consider Potential Barriers to Addressing SDOH and How to Overcome Them 

Suggested questions for team discussion 

• What barriers have we faced in addressing SDOH in our health care system and in our 
community?  

• How have we or can we overcome these barriers?  
o “Challenges and Barriers to Addressing Social Determinants of Health in Rural Areas” 

from RHIhub may be helpful to review. 

• If you are working with clinicians, what concerns might they have about involvement in SDOH? 
What is the clinician’s role in population health and supporting integration of SDOH into health 
care?  

o “Social Determinants of Health 101 for Health Care: Five Plus Five” describes five things 
we know about SDOH and five things we need to learn to address SDOH. The article 
discusses several concerns that clinicians may raise about involvement in SDOH, for 
example, that SDOH is not their domain of expertise or current accountability. 

 

PLAN NEXT STEPS 

A quote by Abu Bakr, a sixth century Muslim leader, sums up why action planning is included: “Without 
knowledge, action is useless and knowledge without action is futile.”  
 
In working through this guide, your team has built foundational knowledge to understand the impact of 
SDOH on your patients and community, and the need and opportunity around addressing SDOH. You 
have reviewed data to support decision-making and you are ready to synthesize the information and 
plan, implement, and measure steps to address SDOH. Resources are available to help with next steps. 
 
A. Discuss the Following Questions with Your Team and Make Decisions About Next Steps  

• How can we get involved in or lead efforts in our community to broadly address SDOH?  

• What processes can our organization put in place to support individual patients and families 
with SDOH needs? 

• What additional opportunities might we pursue?  

• How will we prioritize where to focus?  

• What do we need to do to get started?  

• What resources can we draw on to support our efforts to address SDOH? 

• How will we know if actions that we take are making a difference?  

• What measures can we use to evaluate our work and its impact? 
If you need assistance in answering these questions, see the resources listed in Subsection C below. 

8

https://www.ruralhealthinfo.org/toolkits/rural-toolkit/1/needs-assessment
https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/take-action-to-improve-health/partner-center
https://www.hrsa.gov/sites/default/files/hrsa/ruralhealth/reports/HRSA-Rural-Collaboration-Guide.pdf
https://www.ruralhealthinfo.org/toolkits/sdoh/1/barriers
https://nam.edu/social-determinants-of-health-101-for-health-care-five-plus-five/


 
B. Develop and Implement Your Plan 

• Assign key roles for your initiative (e.g., project manager, project champion(s), and/or executive 
sponsor). 

• Establish measurable goals. 

• Ensure leadership support for the initiative demonstrated by allocation of resources (e.g., time 
and education) and authority to promote implementation success. 

• Identify an internal team to plan, implement, monitor, and measure changes. 

• Identify, contact, and work with community partners and community-based organizations. 

• Prioritize and choose specific interventions. 

• Identify measures to evaluate progress and impact. 

• Anticipate barriers and plan for how to overcome barriers. 

• Develop a written action plan, including a timeline and a communication plan, to update 
everyone who is involved and interested in the initiative. 

• Closely monitor the plan as it is implemented. Monitor your identified measures. Establish 
feedback loops to assess progress early and often. 

• Prepare to adapt interventions as lessons are learned. 
 

C. Review and Use Key Resources Linked Below to Help Your Team Plan and Implement Next Steps 
to Address SDOH  

• Steps to Move your Community Forward (County Health Rankings & Road Maps Action 
Center) 
In this resource, review the five steps to address SDOH and improve health equity: (1) assess 
needs and resources, (2) focus on what is important, (3) choose effective policies and programs, 
(4) act on what is important, and (5) evaluate actions. Key activities and tools are provided for 
each step. For example, in the section on choosing effective policies and programs, there is an 
option to find strategies by topic. This is a starting place to find ideas to address your 
community’s priorities. The best available evidence is summarized, and policies and programs 
that can help improve health behaviors, clinical care, social and economic factors, and the 
physical environment are shared. Strategies can be sorted by “decision maker,” such as health 
care, public health, or nonprofits, to generate ideas for where your organization might lead 
efforts to address SDOH.  

 

• Social Determinants of Health Resources (Healthy People 2020) 
This site provides a variety of resources, organized by domain (Economic Stability, Education, 
Health and Health Care, Neighborhood and Built Environment, and Social and Community 
Context) to help you get started and explore the ways communities across the country are 
addressing SDOH. Also provided are SDOH literature summaries and a snapshot of the latest 
research related to specific SDOH. 

 

• Social Determinants of Health in Rural Communities Toolkit (RHIhub) 
This toolkit compiles evidence-based and promising models and resources to support 
organizations implementing programs to address SDOH in rural communities across the United 
States. Sections include introduction, program models, program clearinghouse, implementation, 
evaluation, funding and sustainability, and dissemination. 

 
 

9

https://www.countyhealthrankings.org/take-action-to-improve-health/action-center
https://www.healthypeople.gov/2020/topics-objectives/topic/social-determinants-health/interventions-resources
https://www.ruralhealthinfo.org/toolkits/sdoh


• Social Determinants of Health (Culture Care Connection) 
If you are further along in your efforts to address SDOH, consider more formal data capture 
around SDOH including risk screening tools and referrals. This website provides information on 
risk screening tools and resources, e-referral vendor solutions, and more.  
 

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES  

A. The Role of Social Determinants of Health in Value-Based Payment Models: A Rural Perspective 
(National Rural Health Resource Center) 
This 53-minute recorded online seminar enables listeners to gain an understanding of SDOH and 
how they affect health and well-being in rural communities. Explore examples of rural health 
providers, together with community partners, leveraging value-based payment models to address 
SDOH. The online seminar also summarizes available resources to support rural health providers and 
community partners to effectively address SDOH. 

 
B. Preventing Chronic Diseases and Promoting Health in Rural Communities (CDC) 

The CDC website presents information showing that people who live in rural areas are more likely 
than urban residents to die prematurely from all the five leading causes of death: heart disease, 
cancer, unintentional injury, chronic lower respiratory disease, and stroke. The CDC reviews the 
causal factors in rural health disparities (including health behaviors, health care access, healthy food 
access, and demographic characteristics) and notes that these factors are linked not only to 
increased mortality, but also to increased morbidity.  

 
C. About Rural Health (CDC) 

The CDC website highlights differences in the number of health disparities experienced by rural 
Americans compared to their urban counterparts. The CDC discusses why rural Americans are at 
greater risk for poor health outcomes and what can be done to improve the health of rural 
Americans. 

 
D. Rural Prevention and Treatment of Substance Use Disorders Toolkit (RHIhub)  

The toolkit provides evidence-based examples, promising models, program best practices, and 
resources that your organization can use to implement substance use disorder prevention and 
treatment programs. There are seven modules in this toolkit. Each module contains resources and 
information to develop, implement, evaluate, and sustain rural programs to prevent and treat 
substance use disorder. 

 
November 2021 

10

https://culturecareconnection.org/social-determinants-of-health/
https://www.ruralcenter.org/rhptp/events/help-webinars/the-role-of-social-determinants-of-health-in-value-based-payment-models-a
https://www.cdc.gov/chronicdisease/resources/publications/factsheets/rural-health.htm
https://www.cdc.gov/ruralhealth/about.html
https://www.ruralhealthinfo.org/toolkits/substance-abuse


END NOTES 

1 US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. COVID-19 cases, data, and surveillance: hospitalization and death 
by race/ethnicity. https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/covid-data/investigations-
discovery/hospitalization-death-by-race-ethnicity.html 
2 Rubin-Miller  L, Alban  C, Artiga  S, Sullivan  S. COVID-19 racial disparities in testing, infection, hospitalization, and 
death: analysis of Epic data. Published September 16, 2020. https://www.kff.org/coronavirus-covid-19/issue-
brief/covid-19-racial-disparities-testing-infection-hospitalization-death-analysis-epic-patient-data/ 
3 Rural Health Disparities. Rural Health Information Hub. https://www.ruralhealthinfo.org/topics/rural-health-
disparities 
4 Rural Health, Preventing Chronic Diseases and Promoting Health in Rural Communities. Centers for Disease 
Control and Prevention. https://www.cdc.gov/chronicdisease/resources/publications/factsheets/rural-health.htm 
5 Leading Causes of Death. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. https://www.cdc.gov/nchs/fastats/leading-
causes-of-death.htm 
6 Leading Causes of Death in Rural America. Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. 
https://www.cdc.gov/ruralhealth/cause-of-death.html 
7 American Heart Association. Social Determinants of Risk and Outcomes for Cardiovascular Disease. Originally 
published Aug 2015.Circulation. 2015;132:873–898. 
https://www.ahajournals.org/doi/10.1161/cir.0000000000000228 
8 Brown JC, Gerhardt TE, Kwon E. Risk Factors for Coronary Artery Disease. Stat Pearls. 2021. 
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/books/NBK554410/ 
9 Yusuf S, Joseph P, Rangarajan S, et al. Modifiable risk factors, cardiovascular disease, and mortality in 155 722 
individuals from 21 high-income, middle-income, and low-income countries (PURE): a prospective cohort study. 
The Lancet, Volume 395, Issue 10226, P795-808, March 07, 2020. Published September 03, 2019. 
DOI:https://doi.org/10.1016/S0140-6736(19)32008-2. 
https://www.thelancet.com/journals/lancet/article/PIIS0140-6736(19)32008-2/fulltext 
  

 

11



Minutes 
CCMC Authority – Board of Directors 
Via ZOOM Meeting or Teleconference 

November 23, 2021 at 6:00pm 
Special Meeting  

 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL – 
 

Linnea Ronnegard called the Board Meeting to order at 6:02pm.   
Board members present:  Linnea Ronnegard, Janice Warga, Kelsey Hayden, Liz Senear, 
and Greg Meyer.  
Quorum was established.  
CCMC staff present:  Dr. Hannah Sanders, Dr. Gloe, Tamara Russin, Barb Jewell, Denna Stavig, 
Eric Price, and Faith Wheeler-Jeppson.  

 

A. COMMUNICATIONS BY AND PETITIONS FROM VISITORS  
1.  Audience Comments ~ None 
2.  Guest Speaker ~ None   

B. CONFLICT OF INTEREST ~ None  
C. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

M/Warga S/Hayden “I move to approve the Agenda.”  
Warga – yea, Hayden – yea, Ronnegard – yea, Meyer – yea, and Senear- yea. 
5 yeas, 0 nay;  Motion passed.   

D. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
1. August 26, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 
M/Warga S/Hayden “I move to approve the October 28, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes.  
5-0; Motion passed. 
 

E. REPORTS OF OFFICERS and ADVISORS 
1.  Board Chair report – Linnea Ronnegard has nothing to report.  
2. CEO Report – Dr. Sanders reported that we had our LTC Survey revisit, and we are in 

substantial compliance. The ER, Hospital, and Swing Bed has been busy as we’ve had an 
increase in utilization of PT and OT. Nursing staff has been busy as well with an increase 
in volume. We’re looking at the move for Rehab to the Admin area to be complete by 
January 1st. We also have purchased a new vehicle for ride share and meal delivery which 
was paid for by an NTSB grant. We are in the end stage of Phase II of the HVAC project.   

3. CFO Report – Eric Price reviewed the Financials with the Board; a few highlights to 
mention are that the cost report has been accepted. We’re looking at $651,000 coming 
from Medicare, and the Medicaid cost report will increase our rate a little bit. Eric reported 
that he will be in Cordova in January for a week to assist with the year end close.   

 
F. DISCUSSION ITEMS ~ None 
G. ACTION ITEMS  

1. Delineation of Privileges for Zachary Norman, MD. 
M/Senear S/Kelsey ““I move that the CCMC Authority Board of Directors approve the 
Delineation of Telemedicine Privileges for Zachary Norman, MD with Alaska Regional 
Neurology/Tele-Neurology as presented.” 
Hayden – yea, Ronnegard – yea, Meyer – yea, Warga – yea, and Senear - yea. 
5 yeas, 0 nay; Motion passed. 12



 
2. Approve Resolution 2021-01 
M/Hayden S/Warga “I move to approve Resolution 2021-01 of the CCMC Authority 
Board of Directors designating the representatives authorized for signing checks, non-
check payroll tax payment, and cash transfers for Cordova Community Medical 
Center.” 

Ronnegard – yea, Hayden – yea, Warga – yea, Senear – yea, and Meyer – yea. 
5 yeas, 0 nay; Motion passed. 

 
3. Approve Resolution 2021-02 
M/Hayden S/Warga “I move to approve Resolution 2021-02 of the CCMC Authority 
Board of Directors to explore an alternate organization structure including a merger 
for Sound Alternatives with the Cordova Family Resource Center and support CFRC 
applications for funding to assist in this process.” 

Ronnegard – yea, Hayden – yea, Warga – yea, Senear – yea, and Meyer – yea. 
5 yeas, 0 nay; Motion passed. 

The December Board Meeting will be held via ZOOM on Thursday, December 16, 2021 to 
review and approve the 2022 Budget. The Board packet will go out on Thursday, December 
9th.  

H. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION ~ None 
I. BOARD MEMBERS COMMENTS  

Senear ~ The financials look good, Happy Thanksgiving.     
Warga ~ Thank you everyone, and Happy Thanksgiving.   
Ronnegard ~ Thank you to all of the staff, I am happy to see the collaboration. Happy 
Thanksgiving everyone.  
Hayden ~ It’s nice to be headed in a positive direction. Thank you to everyone for your hard 
work, and Happy Thanksgiving.   
Meyer ~ Thank you to staff and thank you Nicole and Barb. Happy Thanksgiving from sunny 
California.  

J. EXECUTIVE SESSION ~ None 
K. ADJOURNMENT  

M/Hayden S/Warga “I move to adjourn” 
 

 
Linnea Ronnegard declared the meeting adjourned at 7:00pm. 
 
 
Prepared by:   Faith Wheeler-Jeppson 

13



Memorandum 
To: CCMC Authority Board of Directors 
Subject: CCMC 2022 Budget 
Date:  12/08/2021 
 
 

 

 

 

Suggested Motion: “I move that the CCMC Authority Board of Directors approve the 
Cordova Community Medical Center 2022 budget.” 

14



CCMC 2022 Budget Assumptions 
 

• Utilization – Pandemic activity has continued to make it impact utilization both positive and 
negatively.  As hospitals in other parts of Alaska have surges we are accepting patients that 
require skilled rehab and nursing from outlying communities, therefor increasing our swing bed 
utilization.  We expect this impact to continue in Q1 of 2022. CCMC inpatient and outpatient 
rehab services have grown, and we expect a continued increase in swing bed and outpatient 
rehab volumes due to this. On the outpatient side we are working to encourage preventative 
care and chronic disease management.   
 

• Revenue – Will be driven off statistical projections from 2021 with consideration of impact from 
the pandemic.  We do expect continued impact from the Covid-19 pandemic through the next 
year, which is difficult to predict.   
 

• Contractual Allowances – Payer mix is not expected to change in 2021 so the contractual 
allowances should parallel historical with the exception of the Medicare settlements or mid-year 
rate adjustments.  Our projections are based on the cost report as filed with Medicare as we do 
not have final Medicare rates at this time.  The 2022 allowance is based off budgeted utilization 
and known reimbursement from Medicaid due to our small hospital contract.  
 

• Charity and Bad Debts – Charity will be budgeted based on process improvements that are 
currently being put into place.  Bad Debts management is expected to impact this projected 
amount. 
 

• Cost Recoveries – The larger grants run July through June so we know what the amounts will be 
for half the year. Covid grants and provider relief funds continue to be distributed.  As we watch 
for these opportunities CCMC will be aggressive in seeking funding.   Our in-kind contributions 
come from USAC for internet usage and the City for utilities.  We intend to reduce the in-kind 
contributions from the City.   
 

• Expenses  
 
 Salaries – The emergency pandemic has brought unprecedented staff shortages. This 

drove a significant increase in healthcare salary costs.  In addition, inflation has driven 
costs up as well. We believe this substantial cost increase will return to a new baseline 
but are unsure of that timeline.  We continue the same wage philosophy approved by 
the board utilizing the ASHNHA Wage survey.  Some staff will receive minimal increases 
while others will get something more depending on the wage survey as our objective is 
to be close to average for each job classification.    Wages and benefits have been 
budgeted for these positions but if not filled the expense will be in travelers and not 
wages.  Overtime wages expected with staff shortages have been budgeted as well.  

15



 Taxes and Benefits – Payroll taxes are budgeted off the salary expense.  Health & Life 
are based off current utilization and projected changes in cost.  Some cushion is added 
for vacant positions that when filled will want health insurance coverage. We are 
working with the city to evaluate our health insurance costs  

 Travelers – We will continue to need travelers especially in nursing, and radiology 
 Professional Services – We will continue to need professional services in Information 

Technology, Administration, Laboratory, Medical Records, Radiology and probably a few 
others.  Some of these fees are by contract and some are derived at time of service.  
Will use historical information as well as known needs for the budget 

 Insurance – A majority of our insurance costs are known through most of 2022 as the 
renewals have recently been completed.  This cost is up in many areas by 10% or more. 
CCMC had some decrease in premiums with the closure of the underground fuel take, 
however this savings was absorbed but the significant premium increase.  Per discussion 
with several insurance brokers, the cost of premiums is not expected to decrease.   

 Depreciation – Is based off our depreciation schedule for capital already purchased and 
will be adjusted for any anticipated capital equipment to be purchased in 2022. There 
are some known large capital purchases that include managing sever deferred 
maintenance in our facility.  

 Other Expenses – the rest of the expense budget will be prepared utilizing historical 
data as well as known needs for the coming year. 

 
• Cash needs from the City – based on the conversations at the recent joint City Council-CCMC 

Authority Board Meeting, below are our estimates of needs for cash infusion from the City in 
2022. 
 $300,000 is included in the City budget for an appropriation to CCMC for deferred 

maintenance and capital expenses. 

 

16



CORDOVA COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER
YEAR 2022 BUDGET FOR BOARD REVIEW

12/7/2021

2022 Budget 2021 FORECAST 2020 AUDITED
REVENUE

Inpatients 708,900.00$       695,000.00$        596,761.00$         
Swing Bed 2,350,000.00$    2,256,400.00$     1,110,136.00$      
Outpatients 5,753,800.00$    5,259,600.00$     4,268,375.00$      
Long Term Care 4,800,000.00$    4,710,900.00$     4,643,505.00$      
Clinic 821,000.00$       797,600.00$        596,761.00$         
Behavioral Health 249,300.00$       217,900.00$        370,725.00$         
Retail Pharmacy 1,364,000.00$    1,305,700.00$     1,205,697.00$      
Grants 811,000.00$       500,600.00$        1,635,644.00$      
In-kind Contributions 184,700.00$       185,500.00$        146,738.00$         
Other Revenue 300,000.00$       278,600.00$        77,193.00$           
Total Gross Revenue 17,342,700.00$  16,207,800.00$   14,651,535.00$    

DEDUCTIONS FROM REVENUE

Contractual Adjustments 2,600,000.00$    2,487,200.00$     1,457,819.00$      
Charity 100,000.00$       82,200.00$          14,284.00$           
Administrative Adjustments 400,000.00$       406,600.00$        608,516.00$         
Bad Debt 350,000.00$       386,630.00$         
Total Deductions 3,450,000.00$    2,976,000.00$     2,467,249.00$      

Total Net Revenue 13,892,700.00$  13,231,800.00$   12,184,286.00$    

EXPENSES

Wages 6,238,200.00$    4,993,700.00$     4,684,612.00$      
Employee benefits 2,751,600.00$    2,582,000.00$     2,260,298.00$      
Professional Fees 1,100,000.00$    1,814,400.00$     2,739,645.00$      
Supplies 1,525,800.00$    1,466,700.00$     1,388,828.00$      
Minor Equipment 50,000.00$         43,300.00$          102,166.00$         
Repairs and Maintenance 260,000.00$       262,800.00$        285,825.00$         
Rents and Leases 134,300.00$       121,500.00$        132,229.00$         
Utilities 497,500.00$       491,000.00$        493,474.00$         
Travel and Training 50,000.00$         43,000.00$          34,227.00$           
Insurance 225,000.00$       200,600.00$        176,323.00$         
Recruiting and Relocation 57,000.00$         51,500.00$          32,165.00$           
Depreciation and Amortization 649,100.00$       558,300.00$        702,513.00$         
Other Expenses 350,000.00$       300,700.00$        543,296.00$         
Total Expenses 13,888,500.00$  12,929,500.00$   13,575,601.00$    

Net Gain/(Loss) 4,200$                302,300$             (1,391,315)$         

One Time Capital Expenditures

Priority 1 435,000              
Priority 2 222,500              
Priority 3 14,000                
Total                671,500 

17



CORDOVA COMMUNITY MEDICAL CENTER
YEAR 2022 CAPITAL BUDGET

Priority Department Item Cost

1 Plant Generator move 300,000               
1 Nursing/CAH Ultrasound                                 *Grant Funded 100,000
1 Senior Services Vehicle                                         *Grant 35,000

2 CAH Pharmacy Pyxis System 80,000
2 Plant Remove Carpet and replace flooring 120,000               
2 Plant Overhead bay doors 21,000                 
2 Clinic Retina View 1,500                    

3 Nursing Triage Meter Supplies and Controls 4,000                    
3 Plant Truck Plow 10,000                 

   

671,500               

Priority Codes:
1 Patient safety, immenent need for continued operations
2 Service improvement
3 Infrastructure needs, patient care improvement

18


	12-16-2021 Special Meeting Agenda
	AGENDA
	CCMC AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	ZOOM MEETING OR TELECONFERENCE
	December 16, 2021 at 6:00PM

	11-23-2021 Special Meeting Minutes
	Board development - SDOH
	Memo CCMC 2022 Budget
	2022 Budget FINAL 2.1 BOARD REVIEW
	2022 capital budget
	Capital budet

	ADP6213.tmp
	AGENDA
	CCMC AUTHORITY BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	ZOOM MEETING OR TELECONFERENCE
	December 16, 2021 at 6:00PM


	SDOH: 
	Underlying factors of the SDOH: 
	Economic Stability: 
	Employment Food Insecurity Housing Instability Homelessness Poverty Reliable Transportation: 
	Education Access and Quality: 
	Social and Community Context: 
	Civic Participation Discrimination Incarceration Social Cohesion: 
	Health Care Access and Quality: 
	Access to Health Care Access to Primary Care Health Literacy: 
	Neighborhood and Built Environment: 
	1 US Centers for Disease Control and Prevention COVID19 cases data and surveillance hospitalization and death: 
	fill_8: 
	297600000: 
	1389270000: 
	1323180000: 
	1218428600: 
	fill_9: 
	4200: 
	fill_10: 
	302300: 
	fill_11: 
	1391315: 
	undefined: 
	671500: 


